
1 April 8, 2013 – CB11Q – Meeting Minutes  

 

MINUTES OF COMMUNITY BOARD 11  

GENERAL BOARD MEETING                  

 

DATE:  April 8, 2013                                                 PLACE: M.S. 158  

          46-35 OCEANIA STREET 

          BAYSIDE, NY 11361 

ATTENDANCE: 
Jerry Iannece, Chair Present  Anthony Koutsouradis Present 

Daniel Baek Present Linda Lee Present 

Edith Basom Absent Robert Liatto Present 

Steven Behar Present  Susan Macinick Absent 

Lana Bind Present  Janet McEneaney Present 

Susan Cerezo Present  Thomas Meara Absent 

Ocelia Claro  Present Melvyn Meer Present 

Paul DiBenedetto Present Eileen Miller Present 

Henry Euler Present Douglas Montgomery Present 

Mario Ferazzoli Present Steven Newman Present 

JoAnn Ferrari Present Dennis Novick Present 

Sonya Fierro-Gladwin Present Allan Palzer Present 

Lee Fiorino Present Chris Petallides Present 

Jack Fried Present Stephen Pivawer Present 

Alim Gafar Present Elizabeth Renner Present 

Joan Garippa Present Andrew Rothman Present 

Roy Giusetti Present Christina Scherer Present 

Bernard Haber Present Gary Sekdorian Present 

Christine Haider Present Frank Skala Present 

Zion Halili Present Mamie Smith Present 

Laura James Present Joseph Sollano Present 

Mohan Jethwani Present Jyothi Sriram Present 

George Karahalis Present Teddy Teng Present 

Gordon Keit Present Alex Yagudaev Present 

Incha Kim Present    

 

ALSO PRESENT: 

Susan Seinfeld District Manager, Community Board 11 

Christina Coutinho Community Assistant, Community Board 11 

Mark Scott Representing Queens Borough President Helen Marshall 

Edward Braunstein  Assembly Member   

P.O. Gary Poggiali  111
th

 Precinct, Community Affairs 

Barry Grodenchik Director of Queens Community Boards  

Megan Keane Representing Assembly Member Nily Rozic 

Victor Mimoni Representing Council Member Dan Halloran  

Rajiv Syed, Esq.  Representing Council Member Mark Weprin  

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:32 pm by Chairman, Jerry Iannece.  

 

Mr. Iannece introduced Assembly Member Edward Braunstein who gave an update regarding the State 

Budget that was recently passed.  Mr. Braunstein thanked everyone who is working on the airplane 

noise issues over northeast Queens.  He said that Congress Members Steve Israel and Grace Meng will 

be joining him and Senator Tony Avella in Washington D.C. to speak about the recent issues in regard 

to airplane noise.  

 

Mr. Iannece introduced P.O. Gary Poggiali who gave an update regarding monthly crime statistics.   

 

 



2 April 8, 2013 – CB11Q – Meeting Minutes  

 

Victor Mimoni, representing the 19
th

 Council District Office, stated that the office is open for 

constituent services. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Carol Ricci, a resident who lives within the boundaries of the newly approved Auburndale Slow Zone 

stated her objection to the approval and how the residents were not notified.   

 

David Goldstein spoke in regard to a newly constructed house located at 48-23 211 Street that does not 

meet the criteria for R2A Zoning.  Mr. Goldstein stated that the Dept. of Buildings has been asked to 

look into this location. 

 

Moses McKoy spoke about various issues in the community.  

 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Mr. Iannece stated that, unfortunately, Dan Berrios was not reappointed by the local council member 

and a newly appointed board member already resigned.     

 

New board members introduced themselves; Linda Lee, Oakland Gardens, Daniel Baek, North 

Bayside and Alim Gafar, Douglaston.  

 

ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES  

Jerry Iannece asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the March 4
th

 meeting.  The minutes 

were approved with additions.  

 

CORRESPONDENCE 
Jerry Iannece made the following announcements:  

 

An amendment to the agenda; following the Aviation Committee report, there will be an Education 

Committee report.   

 

The new owners of the property at 252-29 Northern Blvd. (the former Scobee Diner) plan to build an 

office building with a medical facility and two storefronts.  They have submitted an application to the 

BSA since a portion of the property is in an R2A district.  The Little Neck Zoning Committee will be 

meeting with the applicant on April 17 at 7:30 pm.  All interested board members and local civics are 

invited.  

 

The Oakland Lake project for a walkway was supposed to start this year is now scheduled to start next 

year.  Mr. Iannece stated that the project is still in design with the DDC.  

 

The Douglaston Greenmarket will be not returning this season.   GrowNYC is willing to listen to ideas 

for other locations. Mr. Iannece stated that the Bayside BID was approached.  Frank Skala said that he 

would be opposed to the Greenmarket coming to the LIRR at Bell Blvd. Mr. Iannece said that a 

Greenmarket is good for the community and asked for suggestions of other locations in the district.  

 

Orientation for new members has been scheduled by the Borough President’s Office for May 1
st
.  The 

“Swearing In” ceremony for all members renewing their positions and new members is scheduled for 

June 5th.  

 

Commissioner Mullgrav of the DYCD answered our letter regarding the Beacon program cuts and 

responded by stating that funding for the Beacon is not included in the preliminary budget.   Ted Teng 



3 April 8, 2013 – CB11Q – Meeting Minutes  

 

stated that last year, the Beacon program was funded by the City Council.  He stated that elected 

officials are working on getting the message out that the Beacon program needs to be funded.   Paul 

DiBenedetto requested information on the closing of the Beacon program for board members to 

forward letters of support to the Mayor.  Mr. Iannece asked Mr. Teng to gather information and kindly 

forward to Board Members.    

  

Mr. Iannece stated that Assembly Member Ed Braunstein and Senator Tony Avella are doing a 

wonderful job along with our Aviation Committee, Andy Rothman, Joan Garippa and Janet 

McEneaney in regard to the issues with airplane noise over northeast Queens.  Mr. Iannece said that 

Council Member Mark Weprin has also sent CB11 a copy of a letter that Congress Members Grace 

Meng and Steve Israel wrote to FAA Administrator Huerta regarding increased air traffic issues over 

the Bayside area.       

 

The DSNY is accepting ideas for locations for public recycling receptacles. Suggestions could be 

given to Susan Seinfeld.  

 

The DOT is accepting Slow Zone applications again. Applications can be submitted online or by 

contacting Susan Seinfeld.  

 

The Flushing Meadows Corona Park Conservancy is dedicating a trail to deceased CB8 Board Member 

and activist Pat Dolan, on April 21 at 11:00 am at the playground at Park Drive East and 73 Terrace.  

 

P.S. 203Q’s 5
th

 grade Odyssey team will be representing New York State at the 2013 Odyssey of the 

Mind World Finals in Michigan at the end of May.  The principal has come to us with a request for 

assistance in sending their team to the World Finals.   Mr. Iannece said that if anyone wanted to 

contribute they could contact Susan Seinfeld.  Bernard Haber suggested that each board member 

donate $10.00.       
 

Council Member Dan Halloran recently announced the winning participatory budget proposals.   

 

The City of New York will be conducting public hearings regarding the water rate increase.   

 

At last month’s meeting, condolences were given to Jack Fried on the passing of his father, Ben Fried.   

Mr. Iannece stated that Mr. Fried was a pillar of the community and was also a wonderful person.  In 

following CB11’s rule, a dedication to Mr. Fried can be made in one year’s time.  Mr. Iannece asked 

the board to start thinking of a location for the dedication. 

 

NEW BUSINESS  
Henry Euler welcomed the new board members.  Mr. Euler stated that, once again, the community of 

Auburndale was ignored in the selection process.  He said that there were two qualified people that 

applied.  Mr. Euler stated that the applicants did not even receive a courtesy call about the status of 

their application.   There are only two board members out of 50 representing Auburndale.   Secondly, 

Mr. Euler addressed registered public speaker, Carol Ricci, in regard to the Auburndale Slow Zone 

stating that the Auburndale Improvement Association is the organization that applied for the Slow 

Zone and a petition was passed around the community.  He said that after the DOT conducted a traffic 

study, DOT determined that the perimeter of the Slow Zone should be expanded.  Lastly, Mr. Euler 

stated that in 2011, CB11 voted in favor of a variance at 191-20 Northern Blvd. with conditions and 

the application was granted by the BSA with recommended conditions.  He said that the conditions of 

obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy and landscaping on 192 Street have not been met.   

 



4 April 8, 2013 – CB11Q – Meeting Minutes  

 

Mr. Iannece addressed Mr. Euler stating that he spoke to Barry Grodenchik in regard to the application 

process of new board members and that currently there are only 49 board members. 

 

Mel Meer agreed with Henry Euler that the community of Auburndale deserves representation.  He 

also stated that he seconded Mr. Iannece’s suggestion of keeping the Greenmarket in our district.  

When the Douglaston Greenmarket proposal was presented, many thought that it would not succeed 

because of the remote location.   Mr. Meer said that a Greenmarket should be publicly visible.  Lastly, 

Mr. Meer requested a resolution from the City Council, backing up the community in their demands 

for an air traffic quiet zone.  

 

Eileen Miller stated that the American Cancer Society is conducting a study to help prevent cancer, 

Cancer Prevention Study-3.  The study is open to anyone who has never been diagnosed with cancer.  

Additional information can be obtained at cancer.org/cps3.     

 

Paul DiBenedetto stated that because of the self certification process, the new construction at 48-23 

211 Street should be inspected.  Mr. Iannece stated that a plan examiner has inspected the property.  

Mr. DiBenedetto stated that there is a similar building on Corporal Kennedy Street between 38 Avenue 

and 36 Avenue which meets the R2A Zoning requirements.  Mr. DiBenedetto also stated that he was a 

delegate for Council District 19’s participatory budget proposals and said that he will continue to 

persue trying to get funding for the items that were denied with local elected officials.  Lastly, Mr. 

DiBenedetto said there was a rally in front of 38-60 Douglaston Parkway that has plans to renovate.  

This property is not included in the Landmark District and it should be. He stated that hopefully the 

LPC is looking into this issue.  

 

Mr. Iannece stated that in regard to 48-23 211 Street, Bayside Hills Civic Association, will be hosting a 

meeting with various City government officials present on April 30 at the Colonial Church in Bayside 

at 8:00 pm.  Anthony Iuliano, representing the Dept. of Buildings will be there for questions. 

 

Frank Skala questioned the validity of the appointments of the new board members by Council 

Member Dan Halloran, who has been arrested.  

 

Steve Behar thanked the 111
th

 Precinct in regard to an issue with vans parking on 67 Avenue between 

Bell Blvd. and 218 Street.  Mr. Behar said that on Sunday, a tow truck came and the vans were towed.  

He also said that he agreed with Henry Euler in regard to board members not being appointed to 

represent the community of Auburndale.   He welcomed the new members. 

 

Mr. Iannece stated that Auburndale is a very large community and is split between CB7 and CB11.  

 

Mr. Rothman stated that at the recent Aviation Committee meeting, a video presentation was made.  

The CB11 office did not have the proper equipment for the presentation.  Mr. Rothman requested the 

purchasing of projector and screen.  Mr. Iannece said that he spoke with Susan Seinfeld today in regard 

to future purchases and a laptop and projector were on the list.    

 

Discussion ensued as to what will happen to the disbursement of discretionary funding for Council 

District #19.  

 

Douglas Montgomery requested traffic control at Staples on Northern Blvd. in Bayside.  Vehicles are 

exiting the parking lot and crossing the double yellow lines to make a left turn onto Northern Blvd.  

 

 



5 April 8, 2013 – CB11Q – Meeting Minutes  

 

Committee Reports  
Aviation – Joan Garippa and Andy Rothman, Co-Chairs, Janet McEneaney, Queens Quiet Skies, 

spoke about the current status of the fight against airplane noise over northeast Queens.   Mr. Rothman 

discussed the steps that have been taken to prevent the continued flight pattern, and summarized the 

FAA Town Hall meeting.  

 

Mr. Iannece thanked Joan Garippa, Andy Rothman, Janet McEneaney and everyone who has helped 

with the problematic issue of airplane noise.  

 

Janet McEneaney spoke about the transferring of airplane noise from one community to the other when 

there are two airports in one borough.  She stated that on May 2 from 7:00 pm to 9:00 pm, at Bayside 

High School, there will be a community educational seminar discussing the issues of airplane noise.   

 

Bob Whitehead has been a resident of Douglaston for the past three years. He is also a private pilot and 

a former member of the airport community round table in San Francisco.   He spoke about a how he 

will continue to work with other national round tables on this issue.   Mr. Rothman thanked Senator 

Avella and Assembly Member Ed Braunstein for all their efforts regarding this matter.   Mr. Iannece 

thanked Andy Rothman, Joan Garippa and Janet McEneaney for all their hard work on this issue.  

 

Mr. Iannece interrupted the Committee Reports session to introduce Barry Grodenchik, Director of 

Queens Community Boards who welcomed the new board members.      

 

Mr. Iannece also added the following announcement: on Friday there will be a rally and press 

conference outside Borough Hall at 12:00 pm to support the passing of the Child Custody Reform Bill.   

Mr. Iannece stated that there are flyers at the front door.     

 

Committee Reports session resumed. 

 

Education – Laura James, Chair, stated that the Education Committee has been working on Mayoral 

Control, teacher evaluation and overcrowding in the district’s schools.  Ms. James said that the Board 

Members received a draft letter regarding teacher evaluation, there were comments made by the 

committee after the letter was printed, therefore, changes will be made to the drafted letter.  

Information is being collected in regard to school overcrowding, therefore, this topic will have to be 

addressed at a future meeting when all the information is reviewed. She reviewed the proposed 

resolution addressing Mayoral Control which expires in 2015.   The original resolution was written and 

approved in 2009 and she reviewed the items that would be updated.  A question and answer period 

followed.  Ted Teng stated that in regard to Mayoral Control, the goal is to try and give the community 

and parents more control.  Some Board Members stated their opposition in regard to taking away 

Mayoral Control.    A motion was made to approve the resolution.   Discussion ensued as to the issues 

that occurred prior to Mayoral Control.  Mohan Jethwani requested the motion be tabled until next 

meeting.  A unanimous vote in favor to table the resolution until next meeting carried.      

 

The meeting was adjourned by Mr. Iannece at 9:30 pm.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


